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Kawasmy & Partners CO.

Amman - Jordan

Shmaisani, Al-Sharaa! Abdu!l Hamead Sharaf Str, BLD # 28
Tel - 4962 6 5650700, Fax : +962 6 6668590

Independent Auditor’s Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

Ta General Assembly

Al-Egbal Investment Company
(Public Shareholding Company)
Amman - Jordan

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Al-Eqbal Investment Company and its
subsidiaries (“the Group™), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018, and the related consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated changes in shareholders’ equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended, and noles to the consolidated financial statements, including significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements Present Fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and its consolidated
financinl performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordanee with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financiat Statements section of our teport. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board of Accountant Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Emphasis of matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention and as mentioned in note (23) to the consolidated
financial statements which describes that the group have contingent tax liabilitics related 1o the years
from 2009 to 2016, approximately JOD 16 million and lagel compenstion approximately JOD 10
million. The lawsuils are still pending in the tax courts. The Group's Management and lepal consultant
opinion is that the probability of winning the case is high and the recorded provisions are adequate.The
vltimate outcome of the lawsuils cannot reliably be determined and Accordingly, no additional
provision has been recorded in the consclidated financial statements against any consequences that
may arise on the Group.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the current year. These malters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial stalements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do nol provide a separate opinion about these matters. We have determined
the matters described below lo be the Key Audit Matters to be communicated in our report.

Income Tax

Description of the key audit matter

How the matter swas addressed in our audit

Income tax provision requires the management to
make judgments and estimates in relation to
income tax lawsuits and tax provisions. This
matter is considered one of the key areas in our
audit on the Group, taking into consideralion that
subsidiaries are located in different taxable areas.

!

Qur audit procedures included to assess of the

Group's lax positions, ils comrespondence with
the relevant tax authoritics and with Group's
legal end tax consulinnts and to analyze and
chalienge the assumptions used to determine tax
provisions based on our knowledge and
experience of the application of legislation by
the relevant authorities and courts. Our
assessment  included consideration of the
adequacy of the taken provisions by the Group
to face the liabilities that may rise from income
tax lawsuils,

2- Impairment In Intangible Assets

Description of the key nudit matter

How the matter was addressed in our udit

The group has acquired companies during the
currel and previous years, This acquision
resulted in an intengible assets pmounted to JD
182 million. The Group’s management
performed annual valuation for its intanpible
assels to determine whether there is any
indication on impairment of intangible assets.

Evaluating inlangible assets includes many
assumptions and estimates, which make it a Key
Audit Matters.

Based on the followed audit procedures, a study
from expert has been obtained and the
assumptions and methodology used in the study
has been reviewed.




EE S EECOREEDE SN REDEE D EE

-

KkPiab!

3- Expected credit loss in trade recejvables

Description of the key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group has trade and other reccivables with | Our sudit procedures includes testing the
approximately JD 80 million as of December 31, Group's controls over the receivables collection
2018 comparing to approximately 68 million as | processes; including accepting new customers,
of 31 December 2017, this increase has mainly | testing the receipt of cash subsequent to year
resulted from trade receivables recognized in the end, and testing the adequacy of the Group's
accounts of the subsidiaries acquired during 2017 ecpected credit loss provision against trade
and 2018. In addition to an increase in the ceilings | receivables by assessing the management's
granted to some customers and dealing with new assumptions, taking into consideration the
customers during 2018. external available data on trade credit exposures
The adequacy of the recorded provisions for | '™ this sector.

those reccivables depend on management

estimates, and according to IFRS (9). which
| make it a Key Audit Matters. I {

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information does not include the

cansolidated financial statements and audit report on the consolidated financial statemenis ony other
information,

Our opinion on the consolidaled financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

Through performing our audit on the consolidated financial Slatements, our responsibility is 10 read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is malerially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit. If, we conclude that
there is a material misstalement in this other information, we are required (o report that fact. We have
nol been provided with the annual report at the Group or any other information as it relates to this
paragraph until the date of this report.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charped with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control 8s manegement considers is

necessary (o enable the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial sialements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or eror,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 10 going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do s0.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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Auditors® Responsibilities fos the Audit of the Cansolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our audit
report that includes our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, bul is not 2 guarantee that an oudit conducied in
accordance with [SAs will always detect a materia) misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate,

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of uscrs taken on the basis of
these cansolidated financial statements,

As part of audit process in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and meintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain sudit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a materinl misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ane resulting from etror, as fraud may

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
coentrol.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and refated disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as & going concem. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our audit repori to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial stalements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, we
will modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained vp to the date of

our audit reporl, However, future events or conditions may cause the Group o cease lo continue as a
going concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of Lhe consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obiain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the fnancial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group 1o express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements,
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, the planaed scope and timing of the

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our sudit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a slatement that we hove complied with relevant
ethical requircrents regarding independence, and communicate with thern all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Determined those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statemenis of the current period and are therelore, the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our audit report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that o matter should not be communicated in our report

because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefils of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Group maintains proper accounting records. Which are, in accordance in al material respects with

the accompanying consolidated financial statements. We recommend the general assembly to approve
the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial sintements are translated copy to the English language of the original
consolidated financial statements issued in Arabic.

Kawasmy & Partners
KPMG

Hatem Kawa Amman - Jordan
License No, (656) March 26, 2019

l KPMG |
| Kawasmy & Partners €0
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN — JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of December 31,
Jordanian Dinar Note 2018 2017
Assels
Current Asscts
Cash on hand and at banks 5 57,772,284 21,644,788
Trade and other receivables 6 80,019,775 68,633,332
Inventory 7 37,725,583 28,348,285
Other debit balances 8 25,198,616 5,944,212
Total Current Assets 200,716,258 124,570,617
Non-Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income 9 150,525 784,716
Investment property 1o 674,552 674,552
Intangible assets 1 182,297,000 45,555,887
Property, plant and equipment 12 29,351,887 21,965,209
Advance payments for Investments 25 863,871 65,085,689
Total Non-Current Assets 213,337,835 134,066,053
Total Assets 414,054,093 258,636,670
Liabilities and Shareholders® Equity
Current Liabilities
Deferred cheques -short lerm 380,655 299,479
Accounts payable 17,615,290 13,901,441
Other credit balances 13 15,412,439 13,723,642
Income tax provision 20 7,223,590 6,021,753
Payables due to acquisition- short term 14-1 4,183,378 29,505,610
Loans and Bank facilities- short tenin 15-1 78,069,047 85,702,430
Total Current Liabilities 122,884,399 149,154,355
Non-Current Linbilities
Provision ol employees’ end of service indemnity 22 5,284,983 4,344 446
Payables due to acquisition- long term 14-2 14,180,000 2,658,750
Loans and bank facilities- long term 15-2 126,535,379 9,130,272
Total Non-Cuarrent Liabilities 146,000,362 16,133,468
Total Liabilities 268,884,761 165,287,823
Sharcholders’ Equity
Capital 1 60,000,000 30,000,000
Statulory reserve 28 13,897,311 13,897,311
Cumulative change in fair value (20,734) 290,046
Translation reserve 236,323 -
Retained earnings 71,056,432 49,161,490
Total Shareholders® Equity 145,169,332 93,348,847
Total Liabilities and Sharcholders’ Equity 414,054,093 258,636,670

The accompanying notes from pages (10) 1o (46) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
and should be read with them together with the independent auditor's report.

Chief Financial Officer

Board Chalrman
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Jaordantan Dinar
Net sales

Cost of sales
Gross profit

Administrative expenses
Selling and distribution expenses

Dividends from financial assets ot fair value through other
comprehensive income
Administrative end logistics fees

Impairment loss on advance payments for investments
Operating income for the year

Finance cost

Buok interests revenue

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Other income

Profit [or the year before income tax and board of
directors' remuneration

Income tax expense

Profit for the year before board of directors’' remuneration

Board of directors' remuneration
Prolit for the year

Other comprehensive income items:
Items will never be reclassified to profit or loss

Gain on sale of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Changes in fair value for financial assels through other
Comprehensive income

Foreign currency translation differences

Taotal comprehensive income for the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share (JD/Share)

For the year end December 31,

Note 2018 2017

188,606,262 161,654,931
16 (95,025,684) {99,532,963)
93,580,578 62,121,968
17 (22,838,391) (15,567,199)
18 (11,868,442) (7,174,798)
28,900 30,811

26 10,955,274 15,467,068
- (149,000)

69,857,919 54,728,850

(10,948,057) (2,871,683)

185,166 307,956

10416 28,900

24 310,398 243,435
59,415,842 52,437,458

20 (7,716,898) (5,693,123)
51,698,944 46,744 335

{45,000) (45,000)

51,653,944 46,699,335

85,173 21,624

(154,955) (7,008)

236,323 .

51,820,485 46,713,361

2] 0.86 0.78

The accompanying noles from pages (10) to (46) are an integral part of these consolidated financial slalcments
and should be read with them together the with independent auditor’s report.

Chief Financial Officer

Board Chairman
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN -~ JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Cumuiative
Statutory  change in fair  Translation Retained

Jordanian Dinar Capitat Rescrve value Reserve earnings * Total

Balance as ot January 1, 2018 30,000,000 13,897,311 290,046 - 49,161,490 93,348,847
Profit for the year - - - - 51,653,944 51,653,944
Other comprehensive income - - {154,955) 236,323 85,173 166,541
Transfer from fair value reserve to retained earnings - - {155,825) - 155,825 -
Increasing capital- Note (27) 30,000,000 . - - (30.000,000) -
Balance as of December 31, 2018 60,000,000 13,897,311 {20,734) 236323 71056432 145,169,332
Balance as at January 1, 2017 30,000,000 13,897,311 340,934 - 42,396,741 86,634,986
Profit for the year - - - - 46,659,335 46,699,315
Other comprehensive income - - {7,008) - 21,624 14,526
Transfer from fair value reserve 1o retained carings - - (43,790) - 43,790 -
Dividends distribution during the year-Note (19) - - - = (40,000,000) (40,000,000
Balance as of December 31, 2017 30,000,000 _ 13,897.311 260,046 - __A4%,161,490 53,348,847

* According to the Jordanian Securitics Commission (J5C) instructions the negative value of the cumulative change in fair vales in the reined carmdngs is
prohibited from distribution to shareholders.

The accompanying notes from pages (10) to (46) ore an irtegral part of these lidated financial st ts and should be read with them together with the
Independent Auditors repont,
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Al-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

AMMAN - JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Jordanian Dinar

Cash flows from operating activitics

Profit for the year belore income tax

Adjustments far:

Expecied credit loss provision

Key-money amortization

Depreciation

Gain from sale of property, plant and equipment
Pravision for employces® end of service indemnity
Dividends from firancial essets at fair value through other
comprehiensive income

Finance costs

Provision for slow moving items

Impairment of advance payments for investments

Change in:

Trade and other receivables
Cheques under collection
Inventory

Other debit balances
Accounts paysble

Deferred cheques

Other credit balances

Cash generated from operating activitics
Income tax paid

Employces® end of service indemnity paid
Net Cash flows from operating activitics
Cash flows {rom Investing activitics

Proceceds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Advance payments for investments

Acquisition of property, plant and cquipment

Dividends from financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries and distribution rights

Proceeds from sale of financial nssets at fir value through other
comprchensive income

Net cash flows used In invesling aclivities

Cash flows from financing activities

Finasice costs paid

Loans and bank facilities

Dividends paid

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net incrcase (decrease) in cash on hand and at banks
Cash on hand and at banks at the beginning of the year
Translation reserve

Cash on hand and at banks at the end of the year

Far the year end December 31,

Note 2018 2017

59,370,842 52,392,458

6 251,238 5
375,422 453,594

12 3,730,447 3,015,791
(10,416) (28,900)

22 1,055,014 1,017,189
(28,900) (30,811

10,948,057 2,871,683

7 1,145,970 188,442
- 149,000

76,837,674 60,028,406
(41,637,681) (43,015449)

- 28,360

(10,523,268) (4,120,150)
(19,629,826) (1,699,564)
3,713,849 6,737,821

81,176 (58.931)

1,688,797 458 149

40,530,721 18,358,642

20 (6,515,061} (5,280,523)
22 {114,477) (553,014)
33,901,183 12,525,105

48,653 64,934

- (64,337,623)

{11,155,352) (6,473,163)

28,900 30,811

(86,320,277 (6,159,799}

564,400 144,443

(96,833,677) {76,730,397)
(10,948,057) {2,871,683)
109,771,724 78,902,702

= (39910.374)

98,823,667 36,120,645
35,891,173 (28,084,647}
21,644,788 49,729,435

236,323 -

5 57,772,284 21,644,788

T accompanying notes from pages (10) 10 (46) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and
should be read with them together with the independent Auditor's report.
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
{PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ENERAL

Al-Egbal Investment Company-PLC (Intemational Tobacco and Cigarettes PL.C previously) was
incorporated in accordance with Jordan Companies temporary Law no. (1) for the year 1989 as a Jordanizan
public shareholding company, and registered in the ministry of industry and trade of Jordan under no. (218)
on June 1, 1992. with authorized paid up capital amounted to JD 5 millions (1 JD /share).

On October 10, 1993 the capital has been raised through special offering by 100% of the capital to reach
JD 10 millions. On May 5, 1998 the capital has been raised through distributing free shares by 20% of the
capital to reach JD 12 million. On April 16, 2001 the Company has merged with Eqbal for Financial
Investments Company to be the capital JD 14,304,675, On April 15, 2002 the capital has mised through
distributing free shares by 5% of the capital to reach JD 15 million. On April 10, 2005 the capital has been
raised through distributing free shares by 10% to reach JD 16,500,000. On April 16, 2006 the capital has
been raised through distributing free shares by 21% of capital to reach JD 20 millions. On February 25,
2013 the capital has raised through distributing free shares by 25% of the capital to reach JD 25 millions,

The general assembly decided on March 24, 2016 to increase its capital by 5,000,000 shares through
capitalizing the retained earnings by an amount of JD 5,000,000 to become 30 millions (1 ID/share).

The general assembly decided in the extraordinary meeting on June 3, 2018 to increase its capital by
30,000,000 shares through capitalizing retained earnings by an amount of ID 30,000,000 to become the
autherized and paid-up capital of 60,000,000 (1 JD/share). The Company completed its legal procedures
of increasing the capital in the Ministry of Industry and Trade on July 17, 2018,

The company’s main objectives include the following:

Owning commercial agencies.

Trade intermediaries (except dealing with International stock).

Engaging in brokerage and trading tenders,

Import and export 10 serve the company’s business.

Guaranty of third parties obligations relevant to the interest of the company.
Investment of the Company’s funds surplus in the appropriate way,

Ownership of movable and immovable funds, for achieving the company's objectives,
Ownership of land and real estate for achieving the company'’s objeclives.
Contracting with any government, commission, authority, company, institution or individual interested in
the goals and objectives of the company or any of them.

Borrowing needed money from banks.

The consalidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on March 20, 2019 and is
subject to the General Assembly’s approval.

BASIS OF PREPARATION CONSOLIDATED FINACIAL STATEMENTS

(s) Stntement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with international financial
reporting standards.

(b) Basis of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise of the consolidated financial statements of Al-Eqgbal
Invesiment Company (the “‘Parent Company") and its subsidiaries, which subject to its control. Subsidiaries
are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the eatity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the invesled entity. The financial statements of the subsidiasies are included in the consolidated
finoncial statements from the date on which controls commences until the date on which contro] ceases,

10
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN -~ JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The subsidiaries” operations results are included in consolidated profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date of owning them, which is the date on which the control commences.

The parent company controls subsidiaries when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable retums from its

involvement with these subsidiaries and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over these
subsidiaries.

Thus, the principle of control sets out the following three elements of control:

1- Power of the invesior over the investec;
2- Exposure, or rights, to variable retums ot the invetor from its involvement with the investee; and
3- The ability of the investor 1o use power over the investee to affect the amount of the investee and its

returns.

The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable
net assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is 1ested annually for impairment.

Any gain on bargain purchases is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Extra transactions costs are expensed as incurred, except if related 10 the issue
of debt or equity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing

relntionship. Such amounts are generally recognized in consolidaied statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income,

Contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date if the contingent
consideration was classified as equity. As a result, any transactions are treated through equity.
Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognized in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,

Non-controlling interest are measured at their proportionate share of the acquirer’s identifiable net assets
at the date of acquisition,

On loss of control, the parent-subsidiary relationship ceases to exist. The parent no longer controls the
subsidiary’s individual assets and liabilities and other elements of awners’ equity related to the
subsidiary and eliminated from the consolidated financial statements.

Gain or loss associated with the loss of control attributable to the former controlling interest are
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Balances, transactions and unrealized profits and expenses resulted from transactions within the group
are eliminated when preparing these consolidated financial statement.

- The company owns the following subsidiaries as of December 31, 2018:

Ownership Nature of Country of
Company Name Capital Percentage operation operation
%

Al Falther for Tobacco Trading and
Agencies® 6,006,000 100 Tobacco Jordan
Spectrum [ntemational for Renewable
Energy 7,000,000 100 Renewable cnergy Jordan
Intemnational Ciparettes and Tobacco
Company (Under liguidation) 6,000,000 100 Tobacco Jordan

Cayman
Al Fakher Holding-global operations 35,450 100 Investment Island
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** Pioneer Venturc Group has acquired

AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
*Al Fakher for Tobacco Trading and Agencies, owns a subsidiary of which related information is as follows:

Ownership Nature of Country of
Company Name Capital Percentage operation Operation
%
Al Fakher Holding for Tobacco Trading Cayman
and Agencies * 35,450 100 Investmenis Island

*Al Fakher Holding for Tobacco Trading

and Agencies (Cayman Island), owns subsidiaries of which
related information are as follows:

Ownership Nature of Country of
Company Name Capital Percentage operation Operation
%
Al Fakher Tobacco F.Z.E * 35,705 100 Investments UAE
Cayman
Al Fakher Intemational Company 7,100 100 Tobacco Island
Pioneer Venture Group Company ** 35,464 100 Trading UAE
Al Fakher Tobacco Factory- Turkey 18,824 100 Tobacco Turkey

*Al Fakher Tobacco F.Z.E (UAE), owns a subsidiary of which related information is as follows:

Partner’s Owaership Nature of

Country of
Company Name Contribution  Percentnpe operation Operation
%Yo
Al Fakher Tobacco Factory F.Z.E 7,720,000 100 T obacEs UAE

Al Fakher Tobacco Factory owns a company in Ajman industrial aren
and Agencies LLC). Where the financial and admini
under the approval and pledge from the other pastner.

(Al Fakher for Tobacco Trading
strative control is to Al Fakher Tobacco Factory

**Pioneer Venture Group owns subsidiaries of which related infarmation are as follows:

Ownership Nature of Country of

Company Name Capital Percentage opcration Operation
Yo

Al Fakher Holding- USA *** 7,100 100 Investment usa

Al Fakher Tobacco Factory - Egypt* 119,662 100 Tobacco Egypt

Al Fakher Tobacco Factory - Germany * 21,734 100 Tobacco Germany

Qamely Al Fakhier Trading Est ** 4,567 100 Tobacco KSA

Global Arab Trading and Export

Company * 239,325 100 Tobacco Egypt

Charms for Imporiation and Distribution * 79,775 100 Tabacco Epypt

* Pioneer Yenture Group has acquired the above companies in 2018,

Qameh Al Fakher Trading Est Company in 2018, Where the financial

and administrative control is to Pioneer Venture Group under the approval and pledge from the other

partner,
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
***Al Fakher Holding- USA acquired a subsidiary of which related information is as follows:

Partner’s Ownership Nature of Country of
Company Name Contributlon Percentage operation Operation
Al Fakher Distribution — USA
(Previously Sierra Network) 710 100 Tobacco USA

The following schedule represents the financial position and financial performance of the subsidiaries as
of December 31, 2018:

As of December 31, 2018
Total
comprehensive
Totnl Total Total income (loss)
Jordanwian Dinar Asgsets Linbilities Revenue for the year
Al Fakher for Tobacco Trading and
Agencies — Consolidaled 406,623,796 340,770,656 187,209,826 54,227,272
Spectrum International for Renewable
Evergy 7,752,497 3,386,179 1,396,436 (541,423)
International cigarettes and Tobacco
Company 4,247,571 - - -
As of December 31, 2017 s
Total
comprehensive
Total Total Total income (loss)

Jordanian Dinar Assets Liabilities Revenue for the year
Al Fakher for Tobacco Trading and
Agencies - Consolidated 251,910,223 190,633,360 152,142,970 49,375,401
Spectrum International for Rencwable
Energy 6,012,429 1,947,257 9,511,961 {383,483}
International cigarettes and Tobacco
Company 4,247,571 - - (1,500)

(¢) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
financial assets at the fair value through other comprehensive income measured at fair value, financial
assets and liabilitics measured at amortized cost.

{d) Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Jordanian Dinar, which is the Group's functional
currency,

{e) Use of judgments and estimates
In preparing these consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reposting
Standards requires management to meke judpements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of the Group's accounting policies and the reporied amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses,
provisions and to disclose the contingent liabilities. These estimates and judgments also affect the income,
expenses and provisions us well as the rescrve for the valuation of financial assets at fair value and in
particular require management to make judgments to estimate future cash flow amounts. The estimales are
necessarily based on assumptions and factors with varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty and that

13
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN — JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —

actual results may differ from estimates due to the changes resulting from the conditions and circumstances
of those estitnates in the future,

- Judgements

The following are the most significant judgments that have effect on the amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial siatements applied in 2018 only:

Classification of financial assets: assessment of the business model within which the assets are held and
assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financinl asset are SPP1 on the principal amount
outstanding.

Establishing the criteda for determining whether credit risk on the financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition, determining methodelogy for ncorporating forward-looking
information into measurement of ECL and selection and approval of models used to measure ECL.

Assumptions

The following are materially significant estimates of the consolidated financial statements as at December
31, 2018:

Impaimment of financial instruments: determining inputs into the ECL measurement model, inciuding
incorpomation of forward-looking information.

Applicable to 2018 and 2017:

The estimates included in the consolidated financial statements are reasonable and are as follows:

- Management periodically reassesses the cconomic useful lives of tangible and intangible assets based on
the general condition of these assets and the expectation for their useful economic lives in the future.

- Management frequently reviews the lawsuits raised against the group based on a legal study prepared by
the company's legal advisors. This study highlights potential risks that the group may incurred in the future.

- Provision is made for credit losses expected for receivables based on judgment and assumptions approved
by the Group's management to estimate the provision to be made in accordance with the requircments of
International Financial Reporting Standards,

~ Management estimaltes the provision 1o decrease inventory to net realizable value if the cost of inventory
may not be recoverable, damaged, wholly or partially cbsolete, and it selling price to fall below cost or
any other factors that causes the recoverable amount 10 be lower than its carrying amount,

- Management review annually the recoverable amount of the intangible assets to determine whether there
was any impainment in its value,

- Management estimales the provision for income tax in accordance with the prevailing laws and regulations.

Fair value measurcment:

The level in the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements are to be fully classified and fair
value measurements should be determined and disclosed in accordance with the levels set out in IFRS.
The difference between level 2 and level 3 of fair value measurements means assessing whether
information or inputs are observable and the extent of information that is not observable, which requires
careful judgment and analysis of the inputs used to measure fair value including consideration of all factors
relating to the asset or liability, When assessing the fair valuc of financial assets or liabilities, the Group
uses market information when available. In the absence of first level inputs, the Group deals with
independent parties qualified to prepare the valuation studies. The appropriate valuation methods and
inputs used to prepare the assessment are reviewed by management.

- Management believes that its estimates and judgments are reasonable and sufficient.

14
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Significont Accounting Policics

The accounting policies applied by the Group in these consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018 are the same as those applied by the Group in its consolidated finencial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017, except the International Financial Reporting
Standards effective on January 1, 2018 and afier which are as the followings:

-IFRS (9): Financial Instruments.

-1FRS (15): Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

-1FRS (2): Share-based Payments.

-Amendments on IAS {40): Transfers of Investment Property.

-Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 cycle (Amendment to IFRS {1): First-time Adoption of
Intemational Financial Reporting Standards and 1AS (28): Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures,

-Applying IFRS (9): Financial Instruments with [FRS (4): Insurance Contracts (Amendments 10 [FRS
(4).

-IFRIC (22): Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration.

-IFRIC (14): Deferred accounts.

The application of these amended standards did not have a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statemenis of the Group. The following IFRS (15) and (9) implementation details:

IF] 15): Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS (15) Revenve from Contracts with Customers establishes a comprechensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized, applies to all entities entering into
contracts for the supply of services and goods with customers excepl for contracts subject to other
accounting standards such as IFRS (9) and IAS ( 17), which replaces this Standard instead of IAS (1)
Construction Contracts, IAS (18) Revenue and IFRIC (13): Customer Loyalty Program, IFRIC (15):
Agreements of the construction of real estate, [FRIC (] 8): Transfer of Assets form Customers and SIC
(31) Revenue - Banter Transactions Involving Advertising Services, and based on management review

and the annual review, there was no significant effect of the application of the standard on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The application of these amended standards did not have a significant cffect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

IFRS (9): Financial Instruments
The Group has adopted IFRS (9) as a whole starting on | January 2018. IFRS (9) defines requirements
for recognizing and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell

non-financial items. This standard replaces IAS (39) Financial Instruments: {Recognition and
Measurement),

The details of the new significant accounting policies and the nature and impact of changes in previous
gccounting policies are the below:

A) Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities:

IFRS (9) largely retains the existing requirements in 1AS (39) for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous IAS (39) categories for financial assets of
held to maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale.

Financial assets:

The Group has applied the first adoption of first stage of IFRS (9) as of ! January 2018 based on the

JSC's request, there were no significant differences between the first stage of the Standard and the final
version of the Standard issued on July 24, 2011,

According to IFRS (9), upon initial recognition, financial assets are classified and measured at
amortized cost, FVOCI and FVTPL. The classification of financial assels under IFRS (9) is generally

15
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

based on the business mode! in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics. [FRS (9) eliminates the previous IAS (39) categories of held to maturity, loans and
receivables and available for sale. Under IFRS (9), derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is

a financial asset in the scope of the standard are never separated. Instead, the hybrid financial instrument
as a whole is assessed for classification.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at fair value through comprehensive income:

* It is held within a business model whose abjective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows.

» Iis contractual terms give rise in specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
prineipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A delt investment is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it meets both of the
following conditions and is not designated as at fair value through consotidated statement of profit and
loss:

¢ Its held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets.

e Its contractual lerms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably
clect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in consolidated other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment — by - investment basis,

All financial assets that are did not measured at amortized cost or at fair value through the other
comprehensive income statement mentioned above should be measured at fair value through profit or
loss. This includes al financial assets derivatives. Upon initial recognition, the Group has the option to
choose irrevocably to classify and measure financial assets that meet the measurement requirements at
amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income within financial assets at fair value
through statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income, accounting inconsistency that may arise.

The accounting policies applied are similar 1o the accounting policies adopted by the Group
(considering that the Group has early application of the initial phase of IFRS (9)).

The following table and the accompanying notes below explain the original measurement calegories
under 1AS (39) and the new measurement categories under IFRS (9) for each class of the Group's
financial assets and financial liabilities as at 1 January 2018,

The effect of adopting IFRS (9) on the carrying amounts of financial assets at 1 January 2018 relates
solely to the new impairment requirements.

New Currying New Currying
. - Classificution clagsilication  amount under amount under
Jordanian Dinar under IAS (39) under IFRS (9) IAS (39) 1FRS (9)
Financinl asscts
Loans and
Cash on hand and at banks reccivables Amortized cost 21,644,788 21,644,788
Trade and other Loans and
receivables receivables Amortized cost 68,633,332 68,633,332
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial linbilities:

The implementation of IFRS (9) has no significant impact on the applied accounting policies by the
Group which related to financial liabilities whether. IFRS (9) has retained the requirements of [AS (39)
regarding the classification of financial liabilities. [AS (39) requires recognition of the differences in
the assessment of financial liabilities classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
in the statement of profit and loss, wheteas IFRS (9) requires:

Recognition of differences in the assessment of financial liabilities classified as financinl liabilities at
fair value through statement of profit and loss as a result of changes in credit risk in the statement of
comprehensive income,

The remaining amount of fair value valuation differences is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss,

The Group has not classified any financial liabilities in financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss. There is no intention of the management to classify any financial liabilities through profit and

loss. Therefore, there is no impact from the application of IFRS (9), to the consolidated financial
stalements.

B) Impairment on financial assets:

IFRS (9) replaces the "loss recognition” model adopted in IAS (39) to calculate the impairment of
financial assets over "expecled credit loss” model, which requires the use of estimates and judgments
to estimate ecanomic factors. The model will be applied to financial assels - debt instruments classified
at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income but not to invesiments in equity

instruments. Where credit losses are recognized in accordance with IFRS {9), which is eaclier than 1AS
(39).

Under IFRS (9), impairment loss are measured on either of the following bases:

Lifetime ECLs: These ECLs result from all possible default events over the expected life of 2 financial
instrument until the maturity date from the date of consolidated financial statements.

The expected impairment of the life of the financial instrument to maturity is calculated in the event of
o significant increase in credit risk. The expected credit loss model requires recognition of the expected
loss over the life of the asset debt instruments are very similar to the requirements of 1AS (39).

When determining whether the credit risk of financial assets has increased significantly since initial
recognition and in estimating the expected credit loss, the Group relies on reasonable and supportive
information available and relevant, including quantitative and qualitative information and analysis of
this information based on the Group’s past experience and credit study.

The Group considers financial assets ta be impaired when;

The client / buyer will not be able 1o settle its obligations to the Group without resorting to the use of
collateral held agninst such obligations (if any).

If more than 90 days have elapsed on maturity of financial assets.
Expected credit loss measurement:

The expected credil loss calculation mechanism depends on the (probability of default), which is
calculated according to the credit risk and future economic factors, (loss given default), which depends

on the value of the existing collateral, the (exposure at default), the expected credit loss is discounted
at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit rating impalirment:
At each financial period, the Group evaluates the credit rating of financial assets at amortized cost and
fair value through other statement of comprehensive income. The credit rating of financial assets is

cansidered to be impaired when one or more events that have a negative impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset accur.
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Disclosure about impaicrment:

Provisions loss for financinl assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the total carrying
amount of the financial asset. For debt securilies at fair value through other comprehensive income, the
provision for impairment is recognized in statement of other comprehensive income and is not deducted
from the carrying amount of the financial asset. The losses of other financial asscts are presented under
'Financing expenses’ in the same manner of disclosure used in accordance with 1AS (39). Such
disclosure is not included in the statement of profit or loss and other statement of comprehensive income
based on material considerations.

The followings arc the most significant accounting policies;

(A) Financial assets and liabilities

Recognition and initial measurement

The Group initially recognizes loans and receivables issued on the date when they arc originated. All
olher financial assets and financinl liabilities are initially recognized when the group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and linbilities initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable 1o its acquisition or issue.

Classification
Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classificd as measured at: amortized cost; FVOCI; or FVTPL.

A [inancial asset measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following Conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

Its held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash f'ows,and
Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that ere solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

It"s held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and

Its contractual terms give rise on specified dales to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding,

On initiol recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value on OCI. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis.

All other financial assels are mensured at FVTPL.

Business model assessment: Policy was adopted from January 1, 2018

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is

held at a porifolio level because the best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to maonagement. The information considered includes:

The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management’s strategy focuses on eaming contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group's management;

The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held w thin that
business model) and how those risks are managed;
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
How managers of the business are compensated -e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

The frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Financial assets -Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest- Policy was adopted from Jaouary 1, 2018

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. the Group
considers the controctual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that
it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group considers:

-Contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
-Prepayment and extension features; and

-Terms that limit the Group's claim to cash flows from specified assets.

(B) Non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilitics — recognition and derecognition

The Group initially recognizes loans and receivables and debt securities issued on the date when they

are originated, All other financial assets and financial liabilitics are initially recognized on the trade
date,

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or it transfers the righis to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financinl assel are transferred,

The Group derecognizes a financinl linbility when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

Financial assets and financial lisbilitics are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.,

(C) Non-derivative financial assets — measurcment

Finoncial assets at fair value throuph other comprehensive income

These assets represent investments in equity instruments for the purpose of retaining them over the long
term.

These assels are recognized on acquisition at fair value plus acquisition costs and subsequently revalued
at fair value, the change in fair value is reflected in consolidated stalement of other comprehensive
income, sharcholders® equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, including changes in
fair value arising from translation differences on non-monetary items in foreign cumrencies, In the event
of the sale of these assels or part thereof, the resulting gain or loss is recognized in consolidated
comprehansive income and in equity in the consolidated statement of financial position. The balance of
the asset valuation reserve sold directly 10 retained eamnings or accumulated losses not through
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,

The Group may elect to recognize the initial gain or loss and recognize it on the statement of
comprehensive income on equity investments that are not held for trading and are recognized at fair
velue through consolidated statement of other comprehensive income. These assets are not subject to

impairment testing. Dividend income is recognized in the consolidated siatement of profit or loss in a
separate line item.
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financin] assets at pmortized cost

The financial assets that the Group's management intends 1o maintain in order to collect the contractual
cash flows which consist of payments of principal and interest on the outstanding debt balance on fixed

and fixed payment dates. These assets have no active market prices and the Group has no intention of
selfing these assets in the near future.

These assets are recognized at cost, plus acquisition costs, and the allowance / discount is smortized
using the effective interest method, restricted or credited to the interest. Any impairment pravisions that
result in the non-recovery of the asset or part thereof are written off, any impairment is recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The amount of impairment in value of these assets represents the difference between the carrying value

of the records and the present value of the expected discounted cash flows at the original effective
inlerest rate.

Any financial assets from / to this item are reclassificd only in cases determined by the IFRS. If any of
thesc assets are sold before their due date, such sales should be recorded in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in a separate item and disclosed in accordance with the
requirements of the International Financial Reporting Standards.

Non-derivative financial Habilitles at fair value

Non-derivative financial liabilitics are initially recognized at fair value less any directly attributable

transaction costs. Subsequent to initiel recognition, these liabilities nre measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.

(D) Leases

Leases in which the Group Is a lessee — Financing

Leases of assets, that transfer to the group substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases, the leased assets are measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of
their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments,

Subsequent to initial recognition, the assets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to that asset.

The minimum lease payments under operating Jease is allocated between finance cost and principal
payment.
Lenses in which the Group is a lessec — Operating

Assets held under other leases are classified as operating leases and are not recognized m the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position.

Payments made under operating lease are recognized in consolidaled statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on a siraight-line basis over (he term of the lease, Lease incentives received
are recognized as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease,

Leases in which the Group is a lessor— Financing

The Group classifies leases of nssets in lease contract which transfer most of risks and rewards to the

lessee as finance lease, and a receivables recognized which equal to the net investment of fnancial
assets in granted loans.

(E) Property, plant and Equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
asccumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable 1o the acquisition of the property, plant and
cquipment,
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as sepnrated items of property, plant and equipment,

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are
recognized net within the consolidated stalement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and squipment is recognized in the cacrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow
to the company and ils cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derccognized.

Ongeing costs of repair and maintenance of property, plant and eguipment are cxpensed in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated 1o write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their
estimated residual values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and is
generally recognized in profit or loss. Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for the current and previous ycar are as
follows:

Items of property, plant and eguipment Depreciation rate
%
Vehicles 20-25
Other equipment 20-25
Camputers and office equipment 20-25
Fumiture and fixtures 10- 20
Tools 25
Moachines and equipment 10-20
Buildings 5
Leasehold improvetnents 20

The group reviews the uscful lives and depreciation for the property, plant and equipment at the end of
cach financial year.

(F) Impairment

Finnncinl Assets - Policy was adopted from January 1, 2018

A financia) asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that
it is impaired,

A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event had a negative ¢ffect on
the estimated future consolidated cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculnted as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future consolidated cash
fows discounted at the asset’s original effective interast mte.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized. For financial assets measured at amortized cost, the reversal is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment, If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount js estimated.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
estimated recaverable amount,

Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs 10 sell or its value in use.

All impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

(G) Investinent in property

Investment property is property held either to eam rental income or for capital appreciation or for both,
but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. Investments Property is recognized initially at cost. Their fair values are
disclosed in the notes of the consolidated financial statements, independent real-estate experts based on
market values, in an active markct, revaluate investment property annually.

{H) Intangible Assets

M

Goodwill

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as the fair value of the consideration transferred;
plus The recognized amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquire; plus the fir value of the

pre-existing equity interest in the acquire; less The net recognized amount (fair valuc) of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. In respect of equity-accounted
investees, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment, and
any impairment loss is allocated to the carrying amount of the equity-accounted investee as a wholc.
Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired through other than acquisition are recognized at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses,

Intangible assets, which have finite useful lives, are amortized over their useful lives. Amonrtization is
recognized in the consclidated statement of profit ot loss and other comprehensive income; however,
intangible assets without definite useful lives are required to be tested for impairment as of the date the

consolidated financial statement. Impairment loss shall be recognized in the consolidsted statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Intangible assets arising from company operation are not capilalized and should be recopnized in the
consolidated slatement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when incurred.

Intangible nssets are assessed at each consolidated reporting date to determine whether there is any
objective evidence that they arc impaired as well as the useful lives of the intangible asscl are annually
reassessed and any adjustments raised arc recognized in the subsequent years.

Amortization

Amortization is calculated using the siraight-line method over their cstimated useful lives, and is
generally recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Revenues recognition -Policy was adopted from January 1, 2018

Revenue is recognized when the Group transfers the significant risks and rewards of ownership to the
customer and cash recovery of the consideration is probable, when the associated costs and possible
costs of goods can be estimated relinbly, and there is no continuing management control over the goods.
Also, when there is expected economic financial benefits associated from the sale and if trade discount

and volume rebate can be measured reliably in order that the trade discount and volume rebate is
recorded as recognized.
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
() Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are translated at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions,

Monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign custencies at the reponting date are translated to
Jordanian Dinar at the exchange rate at that date.

The foreipn currency gain (loss) on monetary items is the difference between amortized cost in
Jordanian Dinar at the beginning of the ycar, adjusted for effective interest rate and payments during

the year, and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated to JOD at the exchange rate at the end of
the year.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value
are retranslated to Jordonian Dinar at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined,

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation of foreign currencies to Jordanian Dinar are
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income,

{K) Fuir value for financial nssets

Fair values represent the amount with which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, in a
transaction between knowledgeable, willing partics in an arm's length transaction.

The closing prices (purchase of assets / sale of liabilities) on the consolidated financial statements date
in cffective markets, represents the fair value of financial assets and liabilitics that have market prices.

In the absence of quoted prices or lack of active trading of some financial assets or the in absence of an
active market, fair value is determined by comparing with current market value of financial instrement,
or by using the discounted future cash flows discounted at the rate of similar financial instrument or by
use the net assets value method of investmens.

(L) Offsetting

Financial liabilities are set off against financial assets, and the net amount is shown in the consolidated

financial position only when the obliging legal rights are availsble or when settled on net basis or the
realization of assets or settlement of lisbilities is done at the same time,

(M) Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits wil] be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash

flows at a rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability.

(N) Finance expenses

Finance expenses comprise interest expensc on borrowings. All borrowing costs that are not directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are recognized in the

consolidated siatement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income using the effective interest
method.

{O) End of Service Indemnity
A provision for end of service indemnity is recognized if, as a result of a past event, and that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of cconomic benefits will be required. Provisions
for end of service indemnity is calculated bases on the Group's internal bylaw as the following details;
- One year to five years of service, ten days of basic salary calculated for each year,
- Above five years to ten years of service, twenty days of basic salary calculated for each year.
= Over ten years of service, thirty days of basic salary calculated for each year.
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(P) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and defemed tax are recognized in
the consolidated stalement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income except to the extent that it
relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected lax payable or reccivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using

tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting datc, and any adjustment Lo tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred 1ax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when
they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the consolidated
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities ore offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
cntity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and asscts on a net basis
or their tax asseis and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recopnized for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary
differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be utilized,

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at ench reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Current tax payable is in accordance with prevailing income 1ax law in the countries where the
companies are located.

{Q) Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted eamings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attribulable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit or lass attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,

24



o] efer—]

— ] Sl e

N E RS ENEGEEEESENEETE AR IR E MW

AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN — JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(R) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The following new and revised IFRSs have been issued but are not cffective yet, the Group has not

applied the following new and revised IFRSs that are available for early application but are not effective
yet:

Standards

1AS 16 Leasing (effective 1 January 2019 with carly application permitted).

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts {cfTective | January 2021 with early application permitted).
Amendments

IFRIC 23: Uncertainty on Income Tax Processes (effective 1 January 2019).

Repayment features with negative confirmation Amendments to IFRS (9) (effective on January 1st,
2019).

Long term interest in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendments 1o IAS (28) (effective on January
Ist, 2019),

Plan amendments, Curtailment or Settlement — Amendments to IAS (19) (effective on January 1st,
2019),

Annual impravements to IFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle — various standards.

Management anticipates that these standards and amendments will be applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements at the dates set out above, which will have no material impact on the

Group's consolidated financial statements. Except for IFRS 16, the impact of which is expecied to be
as follows:

1FRS (16) Leascs

The Group is required to adopt IFRS (16} “Leases” fram January 1, 2019. The Group has assessed the
estimated impact that initial application of IFRS (16} will have on its financia! statement, as described
below. The actual impact of adopting the standard on January 1, 2019 may change because:

The Group has not finalized the testing and assessment of controls over its new IT systems. The new

accounting policies are subject to change until the Group presents its first consolidated financial
statement that include the date of initial application.

IFRS (16) introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes
a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation 1o make [ease payment. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of
low value-items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard. [FRS (16) replaces existing

leases guidance, including IAS (17) Leases and IFRIC 4 determining whether as arrangement contains
a lease,

The estimated impact on applying IFRS (16) on the assets and linbilities is as follows;
Estimated impact of adoption of IFRS (16)

As reparted at Estimated adjustments Estimated adjustments

December 31, due to adoption of IFRS at January 1, 2019 due
Jordanian Dinar 2018 {16) to adoption of IFRS (16)
RoU assets - 6,334,000 6,334,000
Prepaid expenses 45,597 - (45,597)
Lease liabilities - (6,334,000) (6,334,000)

Leases in which the Group is a lessec

The Group will recognize new assets and liabilities for its operating leases of sites and rentals. The
nature of expenses related to those leases will now change;

Because the Group will recognize a depreciation charge for right-of-use (RoU) assets and interest
expenses on lease liabilities.
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4) Sepment Reporting
An operating segmenl is a group of components of the Group affected by risks and retumns that
distinguish it from others and engages in producing products or services known as operating segments
or engapes in producing products or services within specific economic environment that distinguish it
from other sectors known ns geographical segments.
A- Operating Segment
The Group operates its activities in major operating segments, which represents the follows:
- Tobaceo manufacturing and trading.
- Investments.
- Energy.
B- Geographical Segment
The Group operated its activities inside and outside of the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan,
Tobacco
Jordanian Dinar manufacturing
For the vear end December 31, 2018 and trading Encrgy Investments Total
Sepment Gross Profit 93,324,510 256,068 - 93,580,578
Administrative expenses (17,441,981) {808,525) {4,587,885) 22,838,391)
Sclling nnd distribution expenses (11,868,442) - = {11,868,442)
Dividends frem financial asseis at fair value
through other comprehensive income - 318,900 - 28,900
Finance cost (1,518,237 {102,350) (9,327470) (10,948,057)
Bank interests revenue 183,665 - 1,501 185,166
Gain from sale of property, plant and equipment 10,416 - - 10,416
Administralive and Jogistics fees - - 10,955,274 10,955,274
Other income 221,450 {689) 89,637 310,398
Segment profits (losses) for the year before tax
and board of directors® remuncration 62,911,381 (6263_596) !2,8681943! 59,415,842
Segment total assets 222,784,797 7,144,170 184,125,126 414,054,093
Segment total liabilities 67,026,148 2,721,029 199,137,584 268,884,761
Capital expenditure 11,138,901 12,918 3,543 11,155,362
26

AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Previously, the Group recognized operating lease expense on straight-line basis over the term aof the
lease, and recognized the asset and liabilities only to the extent that there was a timing difference
between actual lease payments and the expenses recognized.

In addition, the Group will no longer recognize provisions for operating leases that it assesses 10 be
oncrous. Instead, the Group will include the payments due under the lease in its fease liability.

Based in the information currently available, the Group estimates that it will recognize additional lease
liabilities of JD 6,334,000 as at January 1, 2019,

No significant impact is expected on other leases in which the Group is a lessee,
Transition to new standard

The Group plans to apply IFRS (16) on January 1, 2019, using the second option of the medified
retrospective approach. Therefore, the cumulative effect of adopting IFRS (16) will not impact the

opening balance of retained earnings at January 1, 2019, and with no restatement of comparative
information.
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN -~ JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tobacco

Jordanian Dinar manufacturing
r the vear end December 31, 2017 nnd trading Encrgy Investments Total
Segment Gross Profit 61,622,676 499,292 - 62,121,968
Administrative expenses (12,735,7719) (743,525) (2,087,895) (15,567,199)
Selling and distribution expenses (7.174,798) - - {7.174,798)
Dividends from financial asscis ot fair value
through other comprehensive income - 30,811 - 30,811
Impairment loss on advance payments for
investments - (149,000} - (149,000}
Finance cost (1,844,466) {61,592} (965,625) 2,871,683)
Bank intcresis revenue 280,960 - 26,996 307,956
Gain from sale of property, plant and equipment 28,900 - - 28,900
Administrative and logistics fecs 15,467,068 - - 15,467,068
Other income 242924 9266 (455) 243,435
Segment profits (losses) for the year before tax
and board of directors’ remuneration 55,887,485 {423,048) (3,026.979) 52,437,458
Segment total assels 137,605,354 5,404,102 115,627,214 258,636,670
Scgment total liabilitics 100,948,687 62,857,821 1,48),315 165,287,823
Capital expenditure 5,458,233 5,181 9,749 6,473,163
5) Cash on hand and at banks
As of December 31,
Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017
Cash on hand 100,443 100,806
Current accounts at banks 54,989,233 16,785,280
Deposils ot banks * 2,682,608 4,758,702
57,772,284 21,644,788
* The maturity date of the deposits is on monthly basis and the interest rate is between 1% to 5.6%.
6) Trade and othes receivables
As of December 31,
Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017
Trade receivables 77,525,553 67,622,683
Advance payments to suppliers 2,499,500 1,171,632
Other reccivables® 406,943 -
80,431,996 68,794,315
Expected credit loss provision** {412,221) {160,983)
80,019,775 68,633,332

* Other reccivables represent the amount due from the old partner of Global Arab Trading and Expon

Company, which will be coliected during 2019,

**The movement on the expecied credit loss provision was as fallow:

For the Year Ended December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017
Balance as of January 1, 160,983 160,983
Additions during the year 251,238 -
412,221 160,983
27
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
*The following is the aging of trade receivables :

91-180 181-270 271-365 More than

Jordanian Dinar Total 0-90 day day day day 365 day
2018 77,525,553 48,957,508 18,468,896 9,555,522 145,415 398,212
2017 67,622,683 44360,499 15,563,299 7,366,610 171,292 160,983
7) Inventory
As of December 31,
Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017
Raw material 20,242,862 20,168,810
Work in process 212,878 88,908
Finished poods 15,240,671 5,919,451
Goods in transit 515,263 439,102
Spare parts 812,057 896,070
Advertisement and accessories goods inventory 1,670,129 890,175
Consumable goods inventory 177,693 134,209
38,871,553 28,536,727
Provision for slow-moving items * (1,145,970) (188,442)
37,725,583 28,348,285

* The Group's management which represented by sales and marketing department calculate the provision

for slow moving items which will not use in production process or it is ot expected to sell in the coming
period for finished and advertising.

The movement on the provision for slow moving items was as follow:
For The Year Ended December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017
Balance as of | January 188,442 -
Provision made during the year 1,145,970 188,442
Disposed during the year (188,442) -
1,145,970 188,442
Other debit balances
As of December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017
Prepaid expenses 4,822,903 2,855,766
Prepaid income tax 902,249 553,418
Refundable deposits 14,453,590 525,769
Employees receivable 180,078 79,991
Sales and income tax deposits 41,167 22,185
Deferred taxes 46,405 54,846
Taxes on interesis 161,719 147,669
Advance payment on projects under construction 1,808,375 180,934
Excise tax 2,626,000 1,519,676
Other 176,130 23,958

25,218,616 5,964,212
Impaimment loss on employees® account (20,000) (20,000}

25,198,616 5,944,212
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9) Financial assets at fair value through gther comprehensive income

As of December 31,
Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017
Quoted market prices * - 483,691
Ungquoted market prices ** 150,525 301,025

150,525 784,716

* This balance represents the fair value of listed financial assets markets for the Group’s share in Bank of
Jordan according to the market value as of December 3 I,2018 and 2017.

** This balance represents the fair value of non-listed in the financial assets markets for the Group's share
in North Industrial Company {Palestine), the Group has determined the fair value of this account using
Net Assets Method for the last audited financial statcments available.

10) Investmegt property

Jordanian Dinar Piece As of December 31,
Country Area Land no number 2018 2017
UAE - Ajman * Aljorf 28 21271 271,028 271,028
Jordan — Amman ** Alibayha 1 1 403,524 403,524
674,552 674,552

*The fair value for Ajman's land as of December 31, 2018 according to average real estate expert valuation
amounted to JOD 289,782 (2017: JOD 331,960) the fair value measurement for land has been categorized

under level 2 fair value based on the inputs that has been determined either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices of similar assets).

**The fair value for Amman’s land as of 31, December 2018 uccording to averape real estate expert
valuation amounted to JOD 1,818,482 (2017: JOD 2,022,535) the fair value measurement for land has
been categorized under level 2 fair value based on the inputs that has been determined cither directly
(i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.c., derived from prices of similar assets).

11) Intanpible assets

Intangible assets consist of goodwill resulted from acquiring subsidiaries in addition to intangible nssets
arising from distribution rights as the following details:

A- Fakher intemational trading tobacco and agencies purchased on June 1, 2006 100% of Fakher irading
tobacco and agencies — Ajman as follow:

. Falr value on Book valuc on
Jordanian Dinar acquisition nequisition
Property, plant and equipment 418,293 418,293
Land 251,817 251,817
Otlier debit balances 38,857 38,857
inventory 418,390 418,390

1,127,357 1,127,357
Account payables and ather credit balances (10,343) (10,343)
Net assets 1,117.014 1,117,014
Cash paid 7,720,000
Goodwill from acquisition 6,602,986
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B- Fakher Holding- USA purchased on December 4, 2017 100% of Al-Fakher Distribution (Previously
Sierra Network) as follow:

Jordanian Dinar Fair value on Book value an
acquisition acquisition
Cash and cash equivalents 1,645,571 1,645,571
Other debit balances 176,692 176,692
Inventory 4,939,000 4,935,000
Property and equipment 25,203 25,203
6,786,466 6,786,466
Account payables and other credit balances {5,699,634) (5,699,634)
Net assets 1,086,832 1,086,832
Cash paid 38,622,629
Goodwill from ncquisition 37,535,797

C- Al-Fakher Holding for Tobacco Trading and Agencies — Cayman Island purchased during 2017 100%
of Al-Fakher Factory- Turkey as follow:

Jordanian Dinar F::‘(; Taie oo B::’;‘ﬁ:::“
Net assets (70,004) {70,004)
Cash paid 1,347,100

Goodwili from acquisition 1,417,104

D- Pioneer Venture Group - purchased during 2018 100% of Al-Faklier Factory- Egypt as follow:

T B e
Net assets (702,514) (702,514)
Cash paid 2,979,552
Goodwill from acquisition 3,682,066
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In 2017, the Group purchased the rights of distribution activities for Al Fakher products in 53 countries
under an agreement by Al-Fakher Holding Company for Tobacco Trading and Agencies.

On 31 October 2018, the Group completed the acquision process of purchase the rights of distribution
product activities in the market that have been acquired. With reference that the agreement is purchasing
agreement for the rights of distribution actvities.

Based on the study provided hy an expert on the acquision of the distribution activity, the Group's
management recognized the value of distribution rights as follows:

Jordanian Dinar 2018

Distribution rights 79,810,367

Goodwill 53,248,680
133,059,047

The summary of intangible assets was as follow:
As of December 31,

Jordunian Dinar 2018

2017
Distribution rights 79,810,367 -
Goodwill 102,486,633 45,555,887
182,297,000 45,555,887

31



I SIS SNl EENEENEGEES

AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
12) Property, plaut ond equipment

]
1
|
!
]
]
|
1
]
|
|

Camputers Machines
Other andoffice  Furnliure and Leasehold Projects under

Jordanian Dinar Land Vehicles | _equip ad fiztuee Tools cquipment  Bulldingy  Improvements  comsiruciion Tots)

Cou - -

Balancs a9 of Jarwary 1, 2018 355 Lo A% 1.9152% 543,306 20519 1 154694230 133%9,000 211,246 1567823 4345351

Adidicions 108,130 208,005 348,933 316504 80,157 294438 51414 1212 15,095 BEISIAL 11,155,362

Dispesal - {5,205) {40,043y - - (44,192} (4,276} . - . (I22.716)

Trambers . - - - . 1508 . - . {83.608) .

Balance 25 of Decomber 31, 1618 1523871 LITT.E5 2,224,135 954230 00676 34647128 16161060 13,78619 161341 11,129,559 31971998

Atctimglsted depreciotion

Balence o2 of fancary 1, 2018 . 632478 1,284,038 364,490 AT 1AM B93LAN 6,80 517 113,22 . 21,080,043

Depreciation for the year : 244,439 115,030 165,64 65,290 476407 1,388,164 L L2346 327 - 313047

Disposal . 29,991 39.115 . = _ {31496) (83771 - - - 0347

Balence a3 of December 31, 2018 - H126 1,479,483 $3,134 542,683 1509073 106,700 7915463 175149 . 24,526,111

Net book value 21 of December

31,2018 16007 30,214 T4 431,69 55813 72051 535468 5,850,819 54,152 11,12955% 29351887
7 Cost

Balomce as of fanuary 1, 2017 3,515,748 187,971 148217 471,646 TR JORIASE  I5527705  1066R131 237,245 1409986 18,014,355
| Additions . 160,818 174,266 11,687 40297 2451 411,630 531,245 - 4828051 647,163

Disposal - (14,539 (5.191) {,248) = {I7618) (4057 (980,155) - = {1.442,166)

Tamkn - - 164,034 3219 - L&) 159912 3059799 . [3570,214) B

Bolance ns of Decermber 31, 2017 35557241 020850 1915298 SH M6 810519 331331 1564230 13279010 nIHE 186701 43,4551

Accumulated depreclsiion

Halance & of Janusry 1, 2017 . 491,519 L.§50,TH 30,6 400,72 LOITRM LMIAT? 765 68,173 = 194044

Depreciniion for the year . 159,378 138,545 53,100 AN 4811 13574 734,157 45449 = 3015794

Disposel . [24.939) [HAL)] {3,657} - {16839) (34T {9,169 . = {1,406,132)

Balance as of December 3, 2017 - 632,978 1,144,088 36449 471373 2474160 3930813 6881517 111,621 - 11.480,143

Net book value &3 of December G

3,011 3,515,141 350171 63t,208 121,816 M6 439659 6761417 6477.508 113,624 2,667,013 2196509

n
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
{(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13) Other credit balances

As of December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017
Accrued expenses — advertisement material 1,063,889 1,807,542
Bonus provision 7,686,015 4,902,942
Accrued interest 48,426 1,075,861
Sharcholders deposils 679,125 769,068
Contingent liability provision 1,812,708 1,600,103
Accrued expenses 3,433,307 2,793,497
Jordanian universities provision 76,448 76,448
Board of directors’ remuneration 45,000 45,000
Humanitarian cases fund 85,583 66,711
Social security deposits B.642 11,402
Others 473,296 575,068

15,412,439 13,723,642

14) Pavables due to acquisition
14-1 Pavables due to acquisition- Short term

In December 4, 2017, Al Fakher Holding- USA acquired 100% of the capital of Alfakher Distribution USA
(Previously Sierra Network), s the remaining investment amount will be paid during 2019.

14-2 Payables due to acquisition- Long term
The Group compleled the purchase of the rights of distribution activities for Al Fakher products in 53
countries under “an agreement of purchasing the rights of distribution activates”. Which resulied in a

B EEE DG SEDEEEEDESEEEENBEN N

deferred amount for old owner of the distribution activities of JD 14,180,000 which will be paid in 2020.

15) Loans and bank facilitics

15-1 Loans and bank facilitics — Short term

As of December 31,

Bank’s name Facility type 2018 2017
In Jordanian Dinar
Bank of Jordan Overdraft 1,205,470 1,080,815
Bank of Jordan {1) Loan 15,930,000 15,930,000
Bank of Jordan {2) Loan 37,155 32,931
Bank of Jordan (3) Loan 129,300 -
Bank of Jordan (4) Loan 37,116 -
Housing Bank (5) Loan 1,646,673 1,098,816
Credit Suisse (6) Syndicated loan 59,083,333 -
Bank of Jordan Loan - 25,000,000
Cajro Amman Bank Loan - 28,359,868
Arab Jordanian Investment Bank Loan - 14,200,000

78,069,047 85,702,430
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
15-2 Loans and Bank facilities — Long term
As of December 31,

Bank's name Facility type 2018 2017
In Jordanian Dinar

Bank of Jordan (2) Loan 282,378 317,088
Bank of Jordan (3) Loan 711,050 -
Bank of Jordan (4) Loan 210,324 -
Housing Bank (5) Loan 7,164,960 8,813,184
Credit Suisse (6) Syndicated loan 118,166,667 -

126,535379 9,130,272

Al Fakher Tobacco for Trading and Agencies Company — subsidiary company obtained a credit facilities
in the year 2013 from the Bank of Jordan amounted 25,300,000 USD, (17,700,900 JOD) which represent a
reducing loan, that will be settled in one payment on January 4, 2014 with a LIBOR of +2%. The loan
payment due date has been extended during the years 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 and lastly in December
27, 2018, as the loan payments due date has been extended 1o be settled in one payment on March 31, 2019
with a LIBOR 3 months + %3.75 and without a limit and with the guarantee of Al- Eqbal investment
company.

The purpose of these credit facilities is to pay dividends to shareholders.

Spectrum Company has signed an agreement to grant a loan from bank of Jordan within the program of
advances of the Central Bank for the industrial seclors, as the loan is distributed according to the invoices
submitted by the company for disbursments and any completed works with a percentage of 100% of the
value of invoices and works with 8 maximum value of JOD 571,200, The loan is subject to 4.5% and
commission of zero and sepaid on equal monthly premium inclusive of interest and shall commence

payment of 108 equal monthly payments including interest, the first installment after 6 months fom the
date of execution until full repayment.

Spectrum Company has signed an agreement to grant a loan from bank of Jordan within the program of
advances of the Central Bank for the industrial sectors, as the loan is distributed according 10 the invoices
submilted by the company for disbursments and any completed works with a percenlage of 100% of the
value of invoices and works with a maximum value of JOD 905,000. The loan is subject to 4 % and
commission of zero and repaid on equal monthly premium inclusive of interest and shall commence

payment of 84 equal monthly payments including interest, the first installment afier 6 months from the dote
of execution until full repayment.

Spectrum Company has signed an agreement to grant a Joan from bank of Jordan to purchase a lond for Al
zoytoun maounten project amounted to JOD 282,000. The loan is subject to 8.375% and commission of
zero and repaid on equal snonthly premium inclusive of interest and shall commence payment of 84 equal

monthly payments including interest, the first instailment afier 6 months from the date of execution until
full repayment.

Al-Fakher for Trading Tobacco and Agencies Company obtained credit facilities from the Housing Bank
with an amount of USD 14 million for the purpose of distributing dividends, where the loan is paid over
meximum seven years including one year of grace period and installments are paid monthly per annum
amounted to USD 154,000 and by the end of the seventh year, the remaining balance of the loan will be
paid in one instaliment with interest of 1 month LIBOR + 2.25 with minimum of 3.25% with a guarantee
of Eqbal Investment Company.
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
{(PUBLIC SHAREBOLDING COMPANY)
AMDMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. Al-Fakher for Trading Tobacco and Agencies Company — Cayman island obtained a bank loan amounted
te USD 250 Million with on interest rale ranging from 3% to 3.25% + 3 months of LIBOR. And the first
instaliment is due on June 30, 2019, With the following guaraniess:

e Guarantee the shares of Al Eqbal Investment company in Al-Fokher Holding Company for Tobacco and
Agencies Trading - Cayman Islands.

= (uaranice the shares of Al-Fakher Holding Company [or Tobacco and Agencies Trading in Al Fakher
Tobacoo Company.

e Guarantee the shares Al Fakher international in Pioneer Venture.
* Mortgaging the equipment only in addition to the land lease of Ajman,

The Bank of Jordan is considered related party as the group has lotal loans and bank facilities amounted to
18,542,793 JD from bank of Jordan.

16) Cost of sales
For the year end December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017
Raw Materials bepinning of the year 20,168,810 15,152,781
Raw Matetial from the acquired companies 493,919 -
Raw Material purchases during the year 72,331,998 85,126,717
Raw Materials end of the yeor (20,242,862) (20,168,810)
Raw Materials used in production 72,751,865 80,110,688
Work in process - beginning of the year 88,908 164,721
Indirect manufacturing cost® 19,902,554 17,809,543
Work in process - end of the year (212,878) (88,908)
Cost of goods Manufactured 92,530,449 97,995,044
Finished Goods-beginning of the year 5,919,453 1,980,067
Finished Goods from the ocquired companies 7,529,790 -
Cost of finished goods purchases 1,343,570 S
Finished Goods- End of the year (15,240,671) (5,919,453)
Cost of goods sold 92,082,591 94,056,658
Add:
Cost of distributed goods and promotional materials 3,711,182 9,548,809
Cost of selling advertising goods 510,235 1,116,897
Subtract:
Cost of free distributed goods {1,036,513) (5.100,445)
Cost of goods returned to manufacturing {241 ,811) (B8,956)
95,025,684 99,532,963
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

*Manufacturing cost includes the following

Jordanian Dinar

Deprecistion and amortization

Salaries, wages, overtime and related expenses

Employees’ rewards
Fuel

Genceral maintenance

Repairs expenses and spare parts
Consumed materials and tools

Rent expenses

End of services indemanity

Damaeged materials

Training expenses and employees’ residency
Eleciricity and water

Insurance expense

Truvel and (ransportation

Cusloms expenses

Cost of returned goods to manufacturing
Project expenses

Export and shipping fees

Fees and subseriptions

Consulting expenses

Food and hospitality expenses

Cleaning expenses

Provision for slow moving items

Other expenses

i6

For the year end December 31,

2018 2017
3,504,175 3,158,881
5,900,755 5,071,487
1,923,730 1,156,597
1,044,569 851,249

326,932 606,395
778,874 745 461
591,753 626,017
844,257 707,619
372,174 405,544
312,249 56,681
176,987 193,692
479,956 520,063
416,282 333,000
191,743 176,994
- 248,560
219,542 6,551
691,236 1,966,697
124,94} 62,196
206,362 114,139
44,160 48,417
348,386 206,896
183,957 196,760
1,145,970 188,442
73,564 161,205
19,902,554 17,809,543
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17} Administrative expenses

Jordanian Dinar

Salaries, wages and related expenses
Employees’ rewards

Donations

Travel expenses

Studies and consultations

End of service indemnity
Depreciation and amortization
Rent expenses

Legal and consulting fees
Professional, Studies and consultations fees
Fees and subscriptions

Health insurance
Communications expenses

Board of direclors transportation
Bdaya project

Trade marks expenses
Advertisement

Tronsportation

Hospitalities

Bank commission

Stationary and printings

Vehicles expenses

General maintenance

Consumed materials

Electricity and water

Cleaning expenses

Fuel

Training

Audit committce fees

Advertising material management
Tax contingent liabilities provision
Other

For the vear end December 3%,

2018 2017
6,739,108 4,942,519
5,300,947 2,892,880
398,550 361,464
834,962 716,777
1,026,169 1,648,264
519,854 451,239
550,787 294,169
471,800 364,889
2,757,686 671,197
760,174 1,258,403
280,185 299,505
457,561 194,847
82,313 147,514
150,000 174,950
101,571 112,985
56,725 20,899
40,946 20,275
166,308 116,273
85,764 45,745
921,775 47,111
58,351 47,149
24,044 20,022
25,876 33,748
121,701 11,075
61,092 14,643
23,492 16,367
28,802 24,269
67,705 66,534
6,000 6,000
26,400 86,159
212,605 &
479,138 453,328
22,838,391 15,567,199

Executive management short term salaries and remunerations for Eqbal Company and it’s subsidiaries for
the year ended December 31, 2018 amounted 10 JOD 3,326,215 (December 31, 2017: JOD 2,025,689).
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18) Selling and distribution expenses

For the year end December 31,

Jardanian Dinar

2018 2017
Salaries, wages, overtime and relaled expenses 3,310,165 1,484,467
Employees’ rewards 1,079,182 664,047
Export and shipping expenscs 713,198 267,218
Exhibit expenses 413,371 407,644
Lawsuils expenses 281,714 671,893
Travel and residency 720,309 325,455
Studies and consultations 250,919 56,301
Designs expense 1,690,317 1,820,551
Materials 252,151 235,478
End of service of indemnity 203,543 160,366
Communications expenses 6,399 38,546
Damaged and absolute goods 169,995 154,571
Advenrtising expense 2,035,117 707,698
Rent expense 13,744 11,882
Health insurance 68,858 41,087
Depreciation and amortization 50,907 16,335
Transportation 4,892 43,846
Hospitality 32,139 11,823
Expected credit loss provision 251,238 -
Training 54,751 19,965
Other 265,533 35,625
11,868,442 7,174,798
19) Dividends
The following table described the declared dividends by the Group:
Jordanian Dinar As of December 31,
2018 2017
Cash Dividends distributed* - 40,000,000
- 40,000,000

* The General nssembly decided in its meeting held on March 6, 2017 to disiribule 2n amount of 40,000,000

JD as dividends for the year 2016.
20) Income tax

Income tax expense is recognized based on the group's tax consullant and group management estimates of
the annual weighted average income tax rate expected for the full financial year applied to the pre-tax

income of the year.

The movement on income tax provision during the year was as follows:

Jordanian Dinar

Balance at the beginning of the year
Income tax cxpense for the year
Income tax paid during the year

Balance at the end of the year
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For the year ended as of

December 31,

2018 2017
6,021,753 5,609,153
7,716,858 5,693,123

{6,515,061) (5,280,523)
7,223,590 6,021,753
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Income tax expense recognized based on group's management estimate of enncted of average annual lax
rate for the whole financial year which is applied on the profit before tax for the year. The group makes a
reconciliotion between taxable income and financia! income. The effective tax rale for the proup which
applied on the profit is 137 as for the year ended December 31, 2018 (December 31, 2017: 10.86%) .

Earnings per share

Jordanian Dinar For the year ended as of December 31,
2018 2017
Profit for the year (JD) 51,653,944 46,699,335
Weighted average for number of shares (Sharc) 60,000,000 60,000,000
Earnings per share for the year 0.86 0.78

The eamings per share was calculated by dividing the profit for the year on the pumber of outstanding
shares amounting to 60 million shares as of December 31, 2018.

The weighted nverage for number of shares was adjusted for comparative year, as the company has
capitalized 30 million free shares from the retained eamings.

Provision of employees® end of service indemnity

End of service indemnity is calculsted according lo the group's intemnal policy, the movement on the
provision during the year was as follows:

For the year cnded as of December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017

Balance as of 1 January 4,344,446 3,880,311
Provision for the year 1,055,014 1,017,149
Paid during the year (114,477) (553,014)
Balance at the cnd of the year 5,284,983 4,344,446

Contingent linbilities
The contingent linbilities at the date of these consolidated financial statements date are as the following:

Jordanian Dinar As of December 31,
2018 2017
Bank guarantecs 11,040,578 2,405,471
11,040,578 2,405,471
Against cash margins represented as follow:
Jordanian Dinar As of December 31,
2018 2017
Cash margins 8,975,403 170,755
8,975,403 170,755

The Company filed a lawsuit with the First Instance Court to object to the decisions passed on by the Income
Tax Department for imposing income tax on the year 2012 with an amount of JD 111,756 in addition to a
legal campensation amount of JD 46,123, A decision was issued in Lhe case to accepl the lawsuit and prevent
the tax department from claiming the company the amount of the tax difference because of a format error
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

in the procedures of issuing the finnl decision of the Tax Department, with the possibility that the tax
department to comect the procedures and raise a new claim against the company with the tax amount.

The Group’s subsidiary (Al-Fokher for Trading Tobacco and Agencies Company) filed o lawsuit with the
First Instance Court 1o object on the decisions passed on by the Income Tax Department for imposing
income taxes for the years of 2009, 2010 and 2011 with an amount of JD 7,843,927 and Legal compensation
amount of JD 3,889,245 and 111,372 for the education support fund. the Tax Court decision was issued
containing the cancelation of the decision of the Income Tax Department as weil as preventing them from
claiming the company for the amounts mentioned, and reserving an amount of JOD 288,681 for income lax
and JD 111,372 for the education support fund and JD 166,715 as a legel compensation. As the company
filed a discriminatory appeal against the decision and the lawsuit is currently at the Supreme Court.

Based on the tax consultant and the group’s management opinion, the company will not pay more than the
emounis contained in the experience report, as the company booked an addition amount of provision
amounted to JOD 212,000 during the first quarter in 2018.

The Group’s subsidiary (Al-Fakher for Trading Tobacco and Agencies Company) filed a lawsuit with the
First Instance Court to object on the decisions passed on by the Income Tax Department for imposing
income laxes with an amount of JD 15,749,062 for the years 2012,2013,2014,2015 and 2016 and an amount
of JD 9,510,970 as legal compensation, and the case is still pending.

Based on the Group's management and it's legal consultant opinion, the probability of winning the legal
case is high because the profit is from a branch and not from an investment. In Addition, the company has
paid the due payments to the Tax Department in Aqaba.

And the company booked an extra provision amounted to JD 1,386,102 for the year 2015,

The old partner of Al Fakher distribution company (previously Sierra Network) filed o lawsuit as a
compensation on the value of selling the company (Sierra) Agninst, Al Fakher distribution, Al Fakher
holding company- USA and Al-Fakher for Trading Tobacco and Agencies Company and asked for a
campensation amounted to JI 2,493,160,

Based on the Group's management and tax consultant opinion, the probability of winning the legal case is
very high and if the amount required must be paid, it will be deducted from the old partners’ payments.

24) Qther Income

For the year end December 31,

2018 2017
Jordanian Dinar
Foreign exchange rate and prices 137,578 {749,619)
Scrap sales 120,102 966,140
Other 52,718 26,914
310,398 243,435

25) Advance Paviment for Investments

The details for the advance paymenis for investments are as follows:

- Spectrum Intemnational for Renewable Encrgy- has invest in a joint project in Sol In Par S.R.L — ltaly, where

the compuny paid an advance payment amounted 10 JD 863,871.
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17) Administrative expensces
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For the vear end December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017
Salaries, wages and related expenses 6,739,108 4,942 519
Employees’ rewards 5,300,947 2,892,880
Donations 398,550 361,464
Travel expenses 834,962 716,777
Studies and consultations 1,026,169 1,648,264
End of service indemnity 510,854 451,239
Depreciation and amortizalion 550,787 294,169
Rent expenses 471,800 364,889
Legal and consulting fees 2,757,686 677,197
Professional, Studies and consultations fees 760,174 1,258,403
Fees and subscriptions 280,185 299,505
Health insurance 457,561 194,847
Communications expenses 82,313 147,514
Board of direclors transportation 150,000 174,950
Bdayn project 101,571 112,985
Trade marks expenses 56,725 20,899
Advertisement 40,946 20,275
Transportation 166,308 116,273
Hospilalities 85,764 45,745
Bank commission 921,775 47,111
Stationary and printings 58,351 47,149
Vehicles expenses 24,044 20,022
General mainlenance 25,876 33,748
Consumed materials 121,701 11,675
Electricity and water 61,092 14,643
Cleaning expenses 23,492 16,367
Fuel 28,802 24,269
Trining 67,705 66,534
Audil committee fees 6,000 6,000
Advertising materinl management 26,400 86,159
Tax contingent liabilities provision 212,605 -
Other 479,138 453,328
22,838,391 15,567,199

Exccutive management short term salaries and remunerations for Eqbal Company and it’s subsidiaries for
the year ended Becember 31, 2018 amounted 10 JOD 3,326,215 (December 31, 2017: JOD 2,025,689).

37



=

== | =

=

2 =

B BN E

N D I B O =

B =3 = =

=1

=

B & &=

&=

=

B B2 3 @ =

|5

AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18) Selling and distribution expenses

For the year end December 31,

Jardanian Dinar

2018 2017
Salaries, wages, overtime and related expenses 3,310,165 1,484,467
Employees’ rewards 1,079,182 664,047
Export and shipping expenses 713,198 267,218
Exhibit expenses 413,371 407,644
Lawsuits expenses 281,714 671,893
Travel and residency 720,309 325,455
Studies and consultations 250,919 56,301
Designs expense 1,690,317 1,820,551
Materinls 252,151 235478
End of service of indemnity 203,543 160,366
Communications expenses 6,399 38,546
Damaged and absolute goods 169,995 154,571
Advertising expense 2,035,117 707,698
Rent expense 13,744 i1,882
Health insurance 68,858 41,087
Depreciation and amortization 50,907 16,335
Transportation 4,892 43,846
Hospitality 32,139 11,823
Expected credit loss provision 251,238 =
Training 54,751 19,965
Other 265,533 35,625
11,868,442 7,174,798
19) Dividends
The following table described the declared dividends by the Group:
Jordaniun Dinar As of December 31,
2018 2017
Cash Dividends distributed® - 40,000,000
- 40,000,000

* The General asscmbly decided in its meeting held on March 6, 2017 10 distribule an amount of 40,000,000

JD as dividends for the year 2016.
20) Inceme tax

Income tax expense is recognized based on the group's tax consuliant and group management estimates of
the annual weighted average income lax rate expected for the full financial year applied to the pre-tax

income of the year.

The movement on income tax provision during the year was as follows:

Jordanian Dinar

Balance at the beginning of the year
Income tax expense for the year
Income tax paid during the year

Balance at the erd of the year

38

For the year ended as of

December 31,

2018 2017
6,021,753 5,609,153
7,716,808 5,693,123

(6,515,061) (5,280,523)
7,223,5%0 6,021,753
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Income tax expense recognized based on group'’s management estimate of enacted of average annual tax
rate for the whole financial year which is applied on the profit before tax for the year. The group makes a
reconciliation between taxable income and financial income. The effective tax rate for the group which
applied on the profit is 137 as for the year ended December 31, 2018 {December 31, 2017: 10.86%) .

Earnings per share

Jordanian Dinar For the year ended as of December 31,
2018 2017
Profil for the year (JD) 51,653,944 46,699,335
Weighted average for number of shares (Share) 60,000,000 60,000,000
Earnings per share for the year .86 0.78

The eamings per share was calculated by dividing the profit for the year on the number of outstanding
shares amounting to 60 million shares as of December 31, 2018,

The weighted nverage for number of shares was adjusted for comparative year, as the company has
capilalized 30 million free shares from the retained eamings.

Provision of emplovees® cnd of service indemnity

End of service indemnity is calculated according to the group's intemal policy, the movement on the
pravision during the year was as follows;

For the vear ended as of Pecember 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017

Balance as of 1 January 4,344,446 3,880,311
Provision for the year 1,055,014 1,017,149
Paid during the year (114,477) (553,014)
Balance at the end of the year 5,284,983 4,344,446

Contingent linbilitics
The contingent liabilities at the dale of these consolidated financial statements date are as the following:

Jordanian Dinar As of December 31,
2018 2017
Bank guorantees 11,040,578 2405471
11,040,578 2,405,471
Apainst cash margins represented as follow:
Jordanian Dinar As of December 31,
2018 2017
Cash margins 8,975,403 170,755
8,975,403 170,755

The Company filed a lawsuit with the First Instance Court to object to the decisions passed on by the Income
Tax Department for imposing income tax on the year 2012 with an amount of JD 111,756 in addition to a
legal compensation amount of JD 46,123. A decision was issued in the case (o accep! the lawsuit and prevent
the tax department from claiming the company the amount of the tax difference because of a forma) error
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in the procedures of issuing the final decision of the Tax Department, with the possibility that the tax
department 1o correct the procedures and raise a new claim against the company with the tax amount,

The Group's subsidiary (A)-Fokher for Trading Tobacco and Agencies Company) filed a {awsuit with the
First Instance Court to object on the decisions passed on by the Income Tax Department for imposing
income taxes for the years of 2009, 2010 and 201 1 with an amount of JD 7,843,927 and Legal compensation
amount of JD 3,889,245 and 111,372 for the education suppott fund. the Tax Court decision was issued
comtaining the cancelation of the decision of the Income Tax Department as well as preventing them from
claiming the company for the amounts mentioned, and reserving an amount of JOD 288 681 for income tax
and JD 111,372 for the education support fund and JD 166,715 os a legal compensation. As the company
filed a discriminatory appeal against the decision and the lawsuit is currently at the Supreme Court.

Based on the tax consultant and the group’s management opinion, the company will not pay more than the
amounts contained in the experience repon, as the company booked an addition amount of provision
amounted to JOD 212,000 during the first quarter in 2018,

The Group's subsidiary (Al-Fakher for Trading Tobacco and Agencies Company) filed a lawsuit with the
First Instance Court to object on the decisions passed on by the Income Tax Department for impasing
income taxes with an amount of JD 15,749,062 for the years 2012,2013,2014,2015 and 2016 and an amount
of JD 9,510,970 as legal compensation, and the case is still pending.

Based on the Group's management and it’s legal consultant opinion, the probability of winning the legal
case is high because the profit is from o branch and not from an investment. In Addition, the company has
paid the due payments to the Tax Department in Agaba.

And the company booked an extra provision amounted to JD 1,386,102 for the year 2015.

The old partner of Al Fakher distribution company (previously Sierra Network) filed a lawsuit os a
compensation on the value of selling the company (Sierra) Against, Al Fakher distribution, Al Fakher
holding company- USA and Al-Fakher for Trading Tobacco and Apencies Company and asked for o
compensation amounted to JD 2,493,160,

Based on the Group's management and tax consuliant opinion, the probability of winning the legal case is
very high and if the amount required must be paid, it will be deducted from the old pariners® payments.

24) Other Incgme

For the year end December 31,
2018 2017

Jordanian Dinar

Foreign exchange rate and prices 137,578 (749,619)
Scrap sales 120,102 966,140
Other 52,718 26,914

310,398 243,435

25) Advance Pavment for Investments

The details for the advance payments for investments are s follows:

- Spectrum International for Renewable Encrgy- has invest in a joint project in Sol In Par S.R.L - Italy, where

the company paid an advance posyment amounted to JD 863,871,
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Administrative and lopistics fees

The owner of distribution activities was charged coss relaled Lo the administrative and logistics befare the
acquisition. And the value that was charged on the owner of the distribution activities amounted 10 JD

10,955,274 for the year ended at December 31, 2018. (JD 15,467,068 for the year ended at December
31,2017).

Increasing Capital

The General Assembly decided in the extraordinary meoting on June 3, 2018 to increase its capilal by
30,000,000 shares through capitalizing retained earnings by an amount of JD 30,000,000 to become the
authorized and paid-up capital of 60,000,000 (1 JD/share)

Statutory Reserve

The amounts in this account represent what transferred from the annval profit before taxes and fees. By
10% during the year and previous years, according to the Companies Act, and is not available for
disiribution to shareholders. The statutory reserve calculated based on the results of standalone financial
statements for Eqbal Investment Company and it’s subsidiaries which subject to Jordanian Companies Law.

Financinl risk management

Overview
The Group has exposure 1o the following risks from its use of financinl instruments.

Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Markel risk

Capital monagement

This nole presents information obout the Group's exposure to each of the sbove risks, the Group's

objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group's monagement of
capital.

Risk management lramework

The Group’s management has averall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Group's risk
management framework.

The Group's risk management policics are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Group,
(o set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.

Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and
the group's activilies, The group, through its training and management stondards and procedures, aims to
develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all emplioyees understand their roles
and obligalions.

The Group Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk
managemcnt policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk manogement framework in
relation fo the risks faced by the Group. Group management undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews
of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported 10 the Audit Commiltee.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a cuslomer or counterparty to a financial instrument

fails to meet ils contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's Cash at banks and deposits,
trade and other reccivables and other debit balances.

4]
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The carrying amount of the finoncial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, The maximum
exposure lo credit risk at the date of consolidated financicl statements was as follows:

Carrving value as at

Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017
Current accounts and deposits at banks 57,671,841 21,543,982
Trade and other receivables 80,019,775 68,633,332
Other debit balances 14,625,764 609,718
152,317,380 90,787,032

Trade and other receivables

The Group applies IFRS 9 a simple approach that measures the expected credit loss which uses the
provision of expected aging credit loss for receivables.

For the purpose of measuring expected credit loss, receivables are gathered based on common credit risk
characteristics and on the maturity of the receivables. The Group has therefore summarized the expected
loss ratios for reccivables as approximate and reasonable with respect to loss ratios for receivables.

The expected loss ratios have been prepared on the basis of paymenits / repayments of receivables during
the period from January {, 2018 to December 31, 2018 and similar historical credil losses tested during
this period. The historical loss ratios have been ndjusted to reflect the impact of research information on
macrocconomic factors, affecting the ability of customers to repay receivables,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations assaciated with
its financial liabilitics that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset, The Group's approach
to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidily to meet
its liahilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceplable losses
or risking domage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to mest expeccled operational expenses, including
the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that
cannol reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. In addition, the Group maintoins line of credit
from its bank for sudden cash requirements.

The following are the contracted maturities of financial liabilities:

Carrying Contractual less than More than
Amount Cash Flows a year A year
As of Decemnber 31, 2018
Jordanian Dinar
Deferred cheques -Short Term 380,655 (380,655) (380,655) -
Accounts payable 17,615,290  (17,615,290) (17,615,290) -
Other credit balances 15,412,439 (15,412,439)  (15,412,439) -
Income tax provision 7,223,590 (7,223,590} (7,223,580) -
Payables due to acquisitions 18,363,378 (18,363,378) (4,183,378)  (14,180,000)
Loans and Bank facilities 204,604,426  (204,604,426)  (78,069,047) (126,535,379)
Provision of employees* end of service
indemnity 5,284,983 {5,284,983) - (5,284,983)
268,884,761 (268,884,761) (122,884,399) (146,000,362)
42
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Carrying Contractual less than More than
Amount Cash Flows a year n year
As of December 31, 2017
Jordanian Dinar
Deferred cheques -Short Term 299,470 (299,479) {29%,479) -
Accounts payable 13,901,441  (13,901,441)  (13,901,441) -
Other credil balances 13,723,642  (13,723,642) ( 13,723,642) -
Income tax provision 6,021,753 (6.021,753) (6,021,753) -
Payables due to acquisitions 32,164.360  (32,164,360)  (29,505,610) {2,658,750)
Loans and Bank facilities 94,832,702  (94,832,702) (85,702,430) (9,130,272)
Provision of employees’ end of service
indemnity 4,344,446 (4,344,446) - (4,344,446}
165,287,823  (165,287,823) (149,154,355) ( 16,133,468)
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rales, interest rate and equity

prices will affect the group’s profit or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk ex

parameters, whilc oplimizing the retum,

Currency Risk

Most of the group’s financial cssets and ligbilities are in Jordanian Dinar,
and due to the fact that the Jordanian Dinar is pegged with US Dollar and U
Dollar, the Group's management believes that the foreign currency risk is

financial statemenits.

The following is a summary of the quantilative information rela

provided to management of the Group based on the risk management policy:

31 December 2018

posures witliin acceptable

US Dollar and UAE Dirhams,
AE Dirhams is pegged with US
not material on the consolidated

led to the Group facing currency risk

EURO EGP SAR TRY

As of Decomber 31. 2018
Jordanian Dinar
Cash on hand and at banks 12,665,128 4,335,038 448,416 77,127
Trade and other receivables 1,246,577 497,792 1,387,420 9,971
Other debit balances 155,253 87,288 5,072,211 86,960
Accounts payable - 2,120,131 27,668 -
Other credit balances 31,089 1,871,741 359,320 611,837

14,098,047 8,911,990 7,295,035 785,895

Sensitivity analysis

A 10 % strengthening of the JD against Euro, Egyptian pound, Saudi riyal and Turkish lirn at 31 December
would have increased / (decreased) profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that
all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis

for 2018.

Inereased Decrensed
Jordanian Dinar Prolit or (loss) Profit or (loss)
As of December 31,2018
EURO 1,409,804 {1,409,804)
EGP 891,199 (891,199)
SAR 729,503 (729,503)
TRY 78,585 {78,585)
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Interest rate risk

At the reporting date of consalidated financial statements the interest rate profile of the Group's interest-
bearing financial instruments was as follaws:

As of December 31,
Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017
Fixed Rote Instruments:
Financial Assels 2,682,608 4,758,702
Variable rate instrument
Financial Liabilitics (204,604,426) (94,832,702)
Other market price risk

Equity price risk arises from financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income held for
meeting partially the unfunded portion of the Group's ebligations as well as investments at fair value
through profit or loss. Management of the Group monitors the mix of debt and equity securities in ils
investment portfolio based on market indices. Material investiments within the portfolio are managed on
an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are approved by the Risk Management Committee,

Share price risk

A change of 5% in fair value of the securities at the consolidated financial statements date would have

increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all
other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

Equity
Jordanian Dinar 5% 5%
As of December 31, 2018 Increase decrease
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 7,526 (7,526)
7,526 (7,526)

As of December 31,2017
Jordanian Dinar
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 39,236 {39,236

39,236 (39,236)

Capital management
The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as lo maintain investor, creditor and market

confidence and to suslain future development of the business. Capital consists of ordinary shares, relained
eamings and interests of the Group,

The management manitors the return on capital, which the management defined as net operation income
divided by total shareholders’ equity.

The management secks lo maintain a balance between the higher retums that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.

The group is not subject ta externally imposed capital requirements.

Debt-to-adiusted Capital Ratio

As of December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017

Total Debit 268,884,761 165,287,823
{Less) cash on hand and at banks (57,772,284) (21,644,788)
Net Debt 211,112,477 143,643,035
Net Shareholders' equity 145,169,332 03,348,847
Adjusted capital 145,169,332 93,348,847
Debt - to- adjusted capital ratio 1.45 1.54
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30) Fair value hierarchy
The table below analyses financial instruments carried ot fair value, by voluation method. The different
levels have been defined as follows:
Level 1: quoled prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2; valuation method can be determined either directly (i.e., as prices) orindirectly (i.e., derived from
prices). This level includes instruments valuated based on:
Prices quoted in active markets for similar insiruments or through the use of valuation medel that includes
inputs that can be traced lo markets, these inputs good be defend directly or indirectly.
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

- Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurrent basis:
The Group measures below assets and liabilities at fair value on a non-recurrent basis

Beok Value Fair Value
Other
Jordanian Dinar Finnncinl nssets financial Level level level
at amortized cost liabilitics (03] (2) {3)
Decembe I8
Financinl asseiy
Cash on hand and at banks 57,772,284 - 57,772,284 - -
Financial assets ot fair valuc
through statement of ather
comprehensive income 150,525 . - 150,525 -
Book Valuc Fair Vaolue
Other
Jordanian Dinar Financiol assets financin) Level Level level
at amortized cost linbilitics {1) (2} (3)
December 17
Financial assefs
Cash on hand and at banks 21,644,788 - 21,644,788 - -
Financial asscis ot fair value
through siatement of other
comprehensive income 784,716 - 483,60 301,025 -

* Fair value in accordance with level (2)
This item represents the cost of financial assets through other comprehensive income that is not listed in
financial markets for the Group portion in North manufacturing Company -Jenin-. The Group performed
test over the fair value for this item using Net asset value of the last available audited financial stalements,
the company's management believes that this is the most convenient way to measure the fair value of the
investment due to the lack of updated information on the market value of this investment.
- Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value:

These finoncial instruments are measured at amortized cost and the fair value of these instruments do not
differ significontly from their amortized cost.

Baok Value Fair Value
Financlal assets Other
at amortized financial Level Level Level
Jordanian Dinar cost labilities (1) (2) (3)
December 31, 2018
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 80,019,775 - - 80,019,775 -
Other debit balances 25,198,616 - - 25,198,616 -
Finaneinl Yiabilitics -
Deferred cheques {3B0,655) - (380,655) -
Accounts payable (17,124,457 - - {17,124,457) -
Other credit balances (15,412,439) - - {15412,439) -
Payables duc 1o acquisition (18,363,378} - - {18,363378) -
Loans and Bank Facilitics (204,604,426) a - {204,604,426) C
45
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There are no transfers between the levels until the end of the financial year ended as of December 31, 2018.

Book Valuc Falr Value

Financial
Jordanian Dinar assets at Other

amortized financial Level Level level

cost linbitities (1 {2) 3)
€T er

Finarcipl gssets
Trade and other receivables 68,633,332 - - 68,633,332 -
Other debit balances 5,944,212 - - 5,944,212 -
Einancig] liabiljties
Deferred cheques {299,479} - - (299,479) -
Accounts payable (13,901,441} - «  (13,901.441) -
Other credit balances {13,723,642) - = (13,723,642) -
Payables due 10 acquisition {32,164,360) - - (32,164,360) -
Loans and Bank facilities {94,832,702) - - (94,832,702) -

There are no transfers between the levels until the end of the financial year ended as of December 31, 2017.
Management believes that the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities appesring in the financial
statements approximalte to the fair values.

Comparative figures

‘The comparative figures represent the consolidated stalement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
in sddition to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated

statement of changes in equity end consolidated staternent of cash flows for the year ended 31 December
2017.
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